ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 3, 2014
1:35 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice Chair
Senator Fred Dyson

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Johnny Ellis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 64

"An Act establishing the Al aska Sentencing Conm ssion; relating
to jail-time credit for offenders in court-ordered treatnent
prograns; allowing a reduction of penalties for offenders
successfully conpleting court-ordered treatnent prograns for
persons convicted of driving while wunder the influence or
refusing to submt to a chemcal test; relating to court
termnation of a revocation of a person's driver's |license;
relating to Ilimtation of drivers' licenses; relating to
conditions of probation and parole; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 64

SHORT TITLE: OVNI BUS CRI ME/ CORRECTI ONS BI LL
SPONSOR(s): JUDI Cl ARY

02/ 27/ 13 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 27/ 13 (S STA, JUD

04/ 04/ 13 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 04/ 13 (S) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 3, 2014



04/ 09/ 13 (S) STA RPT CS 1DP 1INR 1AM NEWTI TLE

04/ 09/ 13 (S) DP: DYSON

04/ 09/ 13 (S) NR. G ESSEL

04/ 09/ 13 (S) AM  COGHI LL

04/ 09/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 09/ 13 (S) Moved CSSB  64(STA) Qut of Committee
04/ 09/ 13 (S) M NUTE( STA)

07/ 25/ 13 (S) JUD AT 10: 00 AM WASI LLA

07/ 25/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

07/ 25/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 29/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 29/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 29/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 31/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 31/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 31/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 03/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General
Crimnal Division

Legal Services Section

Department of Law (DQL),

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on SB 64.

TI FFANY THOVAS, Driver Licensing Manager
Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 64.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Director

Publ i c Def ender Agency

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Coment ed on SB 64.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:35: 04 PM

CHAIR JOHN COGH LL called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Dyson, dson, Welechowski, M@ire, and
Chair Coghill.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 3, 2014



SB_64- OVNI BUS CRI ME/ CORRECTI ONS BI LL

1:35:10 PM

CHAIR COGH LL announced the consideration of SB 64. [The
conm ttee was considering CSSB 64, Version G He recognized that
Senator Ellis was present. He recapped the neeting on Friday and
described a tentative outline for the neetings this week. He
asked Ms. Carpeneti to continue her commentary on the bill.

1:39:12 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Crimnal Division,
Legal Services Section, Departnent of Law (DOL), directed
attention to page 17, Sections 27 and 28. She rem nded the
commttee that subsection (o) applies to termnation of a
driver's license revocations for felony drunk driving, and
subsection (qgq) applies to termnation of driver's |I|icense
revocations for felony refusal to take a breath test. She
highlighted that the mandatory |anguage says the departnent
shall return the driver's license if the various conditions have
been satisfied, but the |anguage does not clarify that this
applies only to revocations for drunk driving and refusal. She
suggested the conmttee clarify its intent.

CHAI R COGHI LL summarized that in each subsection the |anguage in
paragraph (2) following "shall restore” should say this
specifically applies to DU or refusal.

M5. CARPENETI agreed it doesn't hurt to be as clear as possible.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if soneone who had another type of
revocation mght purposefully get a DU charge so he/she could
qgqual i fy under this mandate.

MS. CARPENETI said she wouldn't advise anyone to do that. She
further suggested these sections specify a tinme period for
driving successfully on a limted |icense, and acknow edge the
requirenent in current statutes for a person convicted of felony
drunk driving or refusal to use an interlock device for 60
nmonths after their license is returned.

On page 18, lines 9 and 30, she offered a drafting suggestion to
say "controlled substances or alcoholic beverages" instead of
"“controll ed substances and al coholic beverages".

Regarding the risk and needs assessnent described on page 20,
lines 19-22, she said it mght be helpful to say whether these

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 3, 2014



assessments will be done on people serving their sentence at
home or on an ankle nonitor.

M5. CARPENETI said her final conmment is that it would be hel pful
to have a definite effective date, especially for the provisions
addressing theft, because the applicability provision say the
new t hreshol ds apply on or after the effective date of the Act.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked Ms. Thonmas to discuss the ways that |icenses
can be revoked and why the bill should be nore specific in the
provision that allows the return of a license under certain
condi tions.

1:48: 26 PM

TI FFANY THOMAS, Driver Licensing Manager, Division of Motor
Vehi cl es, Departnent of Adm nistration, reported that her office
oversees the processing of the DW limted licenses as well as
felony and mi sdeneanor term nations of revocations. She said
that Version G addresses nost of the issues that DW raised | ast
April regarding the limted licenses in Section 24, but there
are ongoi ng concerns with Section 27.

Wth regard to Sections 27 and 28, she said the intent isn't
clear, but it seenms as though the bill would wpe the slate
clean if a person successfully conpleted wellness court. The
| anguage in both sections essentially mandates DW to restore
the driving privileges regardl ess of whether that person has set
aside any other Title 28 suspensions or revocations that m ght
be on his/her record. The nandatory |anguage is also problematic
because it is contrary to AS 28.15.031(b)(1) that says that DW
cannot issue a license to a person who is revoked, suspended, or
di squalified. She suggested keeping the permssive |anguage
currently in statute to give DW the discretion to review the
driving record and determne eligibility. She also voiced
concern about creating a different standard for a person with a
felony conviction versus a person who may have only tw DU
of fenses, and fitness to drive issues if a person hasn't had a
license in over five years.

1:52:35 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL asked if inserting a requirement for a road and
witten test would alleviate the | ast concern.

M5. THOVAS said yes. She offered to walk through a typical
felony driving record to show that driving actions conpound. For
exanple, a person may be in wellness court in 2006, but they may
not begin to serve their felony revocation until 2012 because of

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 3, 2014



other driving actions for which they' ve been suspended or
revoked. Responding to a further question, she explained that in
nost DUl or refusal cases the crimnal action runs concurrent
Wi th t he adm nistrative action. Everyt hi ng el se runs
consecutively.

CHAIR COGHI LL said the sanple driving record would be hel pful
the intent iIs to inprove public safety by devel oping
accountability neasures so that fewer people wll be driving
uni nsured on a revoked or suspended |icense.

CHAI R COGHI LL recogni zed M. Steiner.

1:56: 17 PM

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Director, Public Defender Agency, Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DOA), stated that his comrents were technical in
nature and would focus on potential unintended consequences and
policy issues.

He directed attention to Section 19 that addresses credit
agai nst a sentence of inprisonment, or Nygren credit. The new
| anguage on page 11, lines 17-20, redefines the kinds of passes
that are allowed in a treatnment program He said this is an
i nprovenent over the prior statute but the discussion about the
"rehabilitative purposes” for which sonmebody can have a pass to
| eave a treatnment programis a little conflicting.

MR. STEINER said that "rehabilitative purpose” can nean a |ot of
different things; it could nean going to an AA neeting or it
could be an activity for purposes of reintegrating into the
community. He suggested the commttee to put the intent on the
record to help the courts and practitioners sort it out. If the
definition is very restrictive it mght not expand the treatnent
opportunities to a significant degree. \Wereas a broader
definition that was specifically defined by the treatnent
provi der as being for reintegration or sone br oader
rehabilitative purpose would be worthwhile would greatly expand
it to include such things like the program that was at issue in
t he McKinl ey case.

SENATOR DYSON said he believes that the controlled rel ease of
inmates to work off site in fish processing jobs ought to
qualify for credit against a sentence. He asked M. Steiner his
sense of whether the statutes would allow that.

MR. STEINER responded that the proposed change would probably
allow that provided the court didn't interpret the deleted

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 3, 2014



| anguage regarding work required by the treatnment program as
excluding it. Because there's anbiguity in the term it's
inportant to clarify the intent on the record, he said.

2:02:24 PM

SENATOR DYSON opi ned that the | anguage should be clarified, and
that people in the treatnment program should not have the fina
say about whether the work experience is rehabilitative.

MR. STEINER suggested inserting a safety clause to exclude
periods that are determined later not to be rehabilitative. He
said another concern is, if a person for good reason doesn't
exercise the option for a pass, it mght exclude the whole
treatment programfor the period that's not | ocked down.

SENATOR DYSON expressed support for the idea.

MR. STEINER added that the same would be true for the buddy
pass; if it was later determined not to be rehabilitative the

person should still get credit for the period that he/she was
confi ned.

2:04:14 PM

CHAIR COGHILL asked if he had any experience wth getting
approval in advance by the court for work required by a

treatment program H's wunderstanding is that this had been
probl emati c.

MR. STEINER said the problem is that when the work isn't
approved in advance, the person may not get credit for it. The
original draft expanded the definition to expressly limt the
pass to both tine and purpose, which was fine. But Version G has
the additional definition that the pass has to be for a
rehabilitative purpose. That creates a l|layer of anbiguity that
needs clarification. Now it could be argued that work isn't a
rehabilitative purpose; that rehabilitative purposes are |imted
to things |like treatnent prograns and counseling related to the
person's underlying issues. He suggested it would add clarity
for the court if the commttee were to say on the record that
reintegration into the comunity is a valid rehabilitative
pur pose.

CHAI R COCGHI LL asked if a definition was preferable.
MR. STEINER suggested that instead of a definition, the

committee say that rehabilitative purpose is intended to include
passes to support reintegration into the conmmunity. Wrk 1is

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 3, 2014



potentially included because it is part rehabilitative and part
reintegration.

SENATOR DYSON highlighted the rehabilitative value of prisoners
payi ng restitution.

2:08:51 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL stated his intention to bring anendnents to sol ve
this and the DW issues on Wdnesday.

MR. STEI NER said he also had sone concerns with Sections 16 and
18 that <create pretrial release conditions for a testing
program The new | anguage in these sections requires a person to
submt to a test for a controlled substance, but in sone
jurisdictions this has been determned to violate search and
seizure rights in the Fourth Amendnment. He said the condition
doesn't have a specific nexus to the purpose of bail to ensure
public safety. Some courts have said that protecting the public
is there at all tines and is not a special need that gets around
t he Fourth Amendnent.

Wth regard to assuring appearance, he said the courts have held
that it requires sone specific findings that the alcohol or
drugs led to the person not comng to court. The consequence nay
be a Fourth Anmendnent problem if sonmeone were later a bail
violator or charged with a crine. He al so expressed concern that
people with insufficient financial resources may have difficulty
getting out of jail.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked if he believes that this would be unusabl e
under the least restrictive condition.

MR. STEINER said that's possible and it could have a problem
wWth mssion creep if it's ordered in cases where it doesn't
nmeet the |east restrictive requirenent.

CHAIR COGHI LL offered his belief that it could be used in cases
where a person tests positive for alcohol but their trial date
is 40 days away.

MR. STEI NER suggested that limting it to certain types of cases
that are directly related to alcohol and public safety would
address the potential concern about over use.

MR. STEINER al so pointed out that the |anguage on page 19, line

9, could be msinterpreted as requiring appointnments, which
woul d underm ne another aspect of the statute. He also voiced

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 3, 2014



concern in Section 29 that the program discusses specifically
the requirenent of swift and certain, but not a proportional or
short sanction. He explained that what makes a program |li ke PACE
work is that the consequences for nonconpliance are immediate
certain, and short. He suggested that sone |egislative guidance
expl aining the purpose of the PACE-type nodel would be hel pful
He agreed to provide the suggestion in witing.

2:18: 01 PM

MR. STEINER said his next conmment relates to Section 23 that
involves permtting the court to termnate a |license revocation
for DU or refusal. Page 13, lines 14-16, inpose the requirenent
that the person has not been charged with or convicted of
another DU or refusal. But if a person has been charged
i nappropriately and the state later disnm sses the charges,
they're still barred from getting their |Ilicense back. One
solution is to renove the | anguage about bei ng charged.

He pointed out that Section 24, page 15, line 3, has the sane
concern. In this section the court is required to imediately
revoke a limted license if the person is charged with a

vi ol ation. Because this could involve two different courts, it's
inmportant to nake sure that the court that revokes the limted
Iicense makes a specific finding that there is probable cause to
support the subsequent DU or refusal.

SENATOR DYSON cited the exanple of sonmebody who was cited for
driving on a revoked |icense when he was using his truck to nove
tools to work on a culvert at the bottom of his driveway. He
said he doesn't want harsh | anguage to force soneone under this
circunstance to forfeit the capacity to nake a judgnent in those
rare situations.

MR, STEINER said there would be a defense if a person was
rushing sonebody to the enmergency room but that defense
woul dn't be available to the person who was noving his tools.

2:24: 11 PM
SENATOR DYSON said that's a concern.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said a possible solution to Senator Dyson's
legitimate concern is to add |anguage on page 15, |line 3, that
the court finds that probable cause exists for the person to be
char ged.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 3, 2014



MR. STEINER agreed it would work if the court was naking an
i ndependent finding of probable cause, rather than just noting
t hat sonme ot her judge reviewed the case.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said he assunes that the |anguage on page

15, lines 5-6, is zero tolerance. If soneone tests positive,
even with a trace anmount, their |icense would automatically be
revoked.

MR. STEI NER agreed, and added that the sane problem exists there
regarding the inability to address whether or not it was a
legitimate positive test.

He read the |anguage in Section 27, page 17, lines 16-17, and
noted that the corresponding provisions for the court in Section
23 don't refer to any conviction. Under this broad | anguage,
sonebody mght go through the entire program and l|later get a
relatively mnor crimnal conviction unrelated to driving or
al cohol that would prevent them from getting their |icense back

In that <circunstance, the purpose of the program and this
provision would wultimtely not be served. He suggested a
solution would be to limt it to DU and refusal. He noted that
Section 28, page 18, lines 3-4, has the sane concern

CHAI R COCGHI LL said he was noting the suggestions.

MR. STEINER directed his next coments to the nenbership of the
Al aska Crim nal Justice Commssion in Section 32. He
recoomended, as a policy mtter, that the private attorney
that's appointed to the comm ssion be a defense attorney or have
a substantial career in crimnal defense. He noted that the
Ofice of Public Advocacy (OPA) represents close to 80 percent
of the crimnal defense cases in the state, and opined that OPA
could bring a hel pful perspective to the conm ssion.

CHAIR COCGHILL said the point is well taken.

MR. STEINER directed his final comrent to Section 34, page 25
lines 4-6, that references the applicability of the changes to
the Nygren credit. He recommended making the Nygren credit
applicable imrediately to any court order issued after the
effective date of the Act. As currently drafted, two defendants
could be in court the same day arguing for Nygren credit, one
whose conviction occurred the day before the applicability
section and one that occurred the day after. Those two people
woul d be treated very differently.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 3, 2014



CHAIR COGHILL asked M. Steiner to send the suggestion in
witing. He also asked how this would affect the general rule
that a person who is convicted prior to a change in law lives
under the old | aw

MR. STEI NER explained that that is generally true with regard to
sent enci ng provi sions.

CHAIR COGHI LL said that on Wdnesday he expected to take up the
easi er amendnents. This potentially would include the Nygren
credit, the main purpose of which is to allow for rehabilitation
t hat ensures accountability.

2:37:43 PM
There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee
Chair Coghill adjourned the neeting of the Senate Judiciary

Standing Commttee at 2:37 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 3, 2014



